Oral Argument to Court of Appeals

· Good morning, I am the appellant in this appeal, appearing in pro se, and my name is Rodney Stich. 

· In the ten minutes allotted, Appellant will attempt to show the close relationship between the latest due process and civil violations with the continuing attempts to block Appellant, a former federal agent, from reporting criminal activities  that he and a group of other former government agents discovered. These reports were being made under the mandatory requirements of the federal crime reporting statute, Title 18 USC Section 4.
 Appellant first discovered certain of these federal crimes after he was given the assignment to correct the conditions responsible for the worst series of airline crashes in the nation’s history.

· Among the multiple federal causes of actions stated in Appellant’s complaint, and the issues brought to this court, are the following:

· Under the federal crime reporting statute, Appellant has attempted to report to a federal judge the criminal activities against the United States, under the mandatory requirements of the federal crime reporting statute, Title 18 USC Section 4. Every attempt to report these deadly activities had been blocked, and the latest block was done in the lower court. 

· Two of the federal causes of actions arise under the Supreme Court’s void judgment doctrine:

· Federal judges have issued a series of unlawful and unconstitutional orders forever barring Appellant from filing any papers in the federal district and appellate courts. 

· The effect and intent of these orders were to block Appellant from reporting the criminal activities to a federal court, and to block Appellant from exercising the federal defenses needed to halt the ongoing massive violations of state and federal laws that were part of the legal schemes to halt his exposure activities.

· These orders violate the due process and equal protection guarantees of the Constitution, and deprive Appellant the defenses guaranteed by the laws and Constitution of the United States. At this time, anyone can perpetrate any violation upon Appellant through sham legal actions and Appellant cannot exercise the defenses in the laws and Constitution of the United States.

· After the first of these unlawful orders were rendered in the Ninth Circuit courts, Appellant discovered additional criminal activities. As required by the federal crime reporting statute, and granted by federal rights, Appellant sought to report these criminal activities, and also exercised federal defenses seeking to h alt the great and irreparable personal and financial harm he was suffering from the violations of federally protected rights.

· A U.S. attorney and federal judges then retaliated against Appellant for attempting to report these criminal activities and for exercising defenses guaranteed to all citizens by the laws and Constitution of the United States. Appellant was denied a jury trial and sentenced to six months in federal prison

· While in prison, federal judges rendered unlawful and unconstitutional orders seizing and liquidating Appellant’s $10 million in assets that Appellant foolishly used to fund his exposure activities.  

· These orders were combined with an order barring Appellant from filing any objections. When Appellant exercised his legal and constitutional right to object to the seizure of his life assets, a federal judge charged him with criminal contempt of court for having exercised that legal and constitutional right, denied him a jury trial, and sentenced him again to federal prison.

· Several tactics were used to block appellant from reporting the criminal activities, and to block Appellant from exercising federal defenses.

· Every action was dismissed at the pleading stage, often sua sponte dismissals, and always during the initial filing stages. 

· Seeking to justify the dismissals, the standard practice was to reverse the legal and common sense definition of frivolous and call Appellant’s filings frivolous.  Exercising federal remedies for the most outrageous, and record-setting violations of state and federal laws, a frivolous label was promptly placed.

· A classic example. In a lawsuit filed by a CIA-front  law firm,  the violations of state and federal laws that barred the action included (a) over 36 California and federal statutes; (b) over a dozen rules of court; (c) several landmark Supreme Court decisions; (d) major constitutional protections, for which federal defenses existed for any one of these violations under the Civil Rights Act and the Declaratory Judgment Act. Appellant was suffering great and irreparable financial and personal harm from the violations. Despite all this, federal judges repeatedly placed a frivolous label on Appellant’s exercise of federal defenses.

· Federal judges blocked every due process protection, barring appellant from having the federal claims adjudicated on their merits. Instead, every action was given a frivolous label and dismissed.

· Judge Mukasey enlarged upon this tactic, falsely stating in his sua sponte dismissal order that each of the claims had been adjudicated on the merits; that they were found to be without merit; that Appellant was a vexatious litigant filing frivolous actions. 

.

· Included in the relief sought from this appellate court are the following:

· Order that permits appellant and his group of other former government agents to provide information, testimony, and evidence, of the criminal activities that they discovered during their  official duties. 

· An Order holding the series of permanent injunctions unlawful, unconstitutional, and void, returning to Appellant the same due process and equal protection rights guaranteed to everyone else.

· Order holding that the unlawful and unconstitutional orders seizing and liquidating appellant’s life assets are void, and that the title and possession of the properties be returned to the status that they were in when they were ordered seized. 

· Simply returning this case to the lower courts would be  the equivalent of continuing the same tactics. The only remedy Appellant knows is for this court to provide an adequate  federal court forum for Appellant and several other former government agents to provide information, testimony and evidence.

· Since the massive due process and civil violations were an integral part of the felony obstruction of justice actions, this court should adjudicate on the merits the causes of actions under the Civil Rights Act, Bivens, RICO, Declaratory Judgment Act, and Federal Tort Claims Act.

· In closing, appellant makes the following statement to show how this misconduct appellant had caused, and enabled to be inflicted, catastrophic harm upon the United States, with heavy loss of life. The blowback is only one day’s consequences, and in only one of the areas affected by the corruption that Appellant and other government agents sought to report, were the conditions that enabled terrorists to seize hijack four airliners on 9/11:

· The hijackings of four airliners on 9/11 were primarily aviation disasters.

· The need and the means to prevent airliner hijackings have been known for years.


· The authority and responsibility to order these preventive measures existed throughout this period by people in certain government aviation safety offices.


· Deep-seated corruption and criminal misconduct existed in certain areas of the government’s aviation safety offices that prevented the government from carrying out its federal aviation safety responsibilities. That includes blocking the known preventative measures against airliner hijackings.

· The areas of primary blame enabling terrorists to hijack four airliners on 9/11.


· Those people in the government’s aviation safety offices engaged in the corruption and criminal activities.


· Those  people, some of whom are referred to in Appellant’s present and prior complaints, who blocked Appellant from reporting the criminal activities.


· Those people who retaliated against Appellant for attempting to report the criminal activities.


· Those involved in the legal actions that were dual efforts to halt Appellant’s exposure activities.


· Those who knew of the criminal activities, or knew of the obstruction of justice and failed to halt these obstruction of justice activities.


PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS VIOLATIONS BY LOWER COURT JUDGE

· The district court judge ordered a sua sponte dismissal without a hearing, and the massive misstatements of law and facts, the deception, that violated procedural due process.

.

· Violated mandatory responsibilities under the federal crime reporting statute (18 U.S.C. § 4)
 to receive information and evidence of criminal activities in certain government offices being reported by former government agents that they discovered as part of their official duties. Crimes under 18 U.S.C. §§ 2,3,4.

· Felonious retaliated against Appellant for attempting to report the criminal activities in government offices. These were criminal acts.

· Feloniously retaliated against Appellant for attempting to exercise civil and constitutional defenses against the federal violations that were part of parallel schemes to block the reporting of the criminal activities. [Thereby violating  Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 241, 242, 245; and 42 U.S.C. §§ 1985].



Procedural due process violations in the lower court.

· The lower court judge violated the bar against dismissal.  

[TA \s "Wolff" \c 1 \l "Wolff v. McDonnell (1974) 418 U.S. 539"

TA \s "Wolff v. McDonnell (1974) 418 U.S. 539" \c 2 \l "Wolff v. McDonnell      (1974) 418 U.S. 539"Wolff v. McDonnell (1974) 418 U.S. 539. “The Court has consistently held that some kind of hearing is re​quired before a person is finally deprived of his property inter​ests.” No notice was given to Appellant in the lower court prior to dismissing the Complaint. Further, Judge Mukasey blocked the filing of that lawsuit for 13 months—while preparing his five-page sua sponte dismissal order addressing issues in the Complaint that were not even a matter of record until the Complaint was filed.]

· The lower court judge violated the right to present evidence.


[In Haines v. Kerner, 404 U.S. 519 (1972), the Supreme Court held:PRIVATE 

allegations such as those asserted by petitioner, however inartfully pleaded, are sufficient to call for the opportunity to offer supporting evidence. We cannot say with assurances that under the allegations of the pro se complaint, which we hold to less stringent standards than formal pleadings drafted by lawyers, it appears "beyond doubt that the plaintiff can prove no set of facts in support It is a fundamental doctrine of law that a party to be affected by a personal judgment must have his day in court, and an opportunity to be heard. Renaud v. Abbott, 116 US 277, 29 L Ed 629, 6 S Ct 1194. Every person is entitled to an opportunity to be heard in a court of law upon every question involving his rights or interests, before he is affected by any judicial decision on the question. Earle v McVeigh, 91 US 503, 23 L Ed 398.
· Violated Rule 12 bar to dismissal when the complaint stated facts showing federal causes of actions for which federal remedies existed. 

· The facts in Appellant’s complaint stated multiple federal causes of actions under:

[Federal crime reporting statute which the judge must receive. (pg. 1, 5, 10, 13, 14, 19,)

· Civil Rights Act. (pgs18 & 21

· Bivens. (pg 9)

· RICO. (pgs. 18 & 21)

· FTCA.  (pg 1, 17,20,

· Declaratory Judgment Act.  (pg 1, 14,15,16,19)

· Void judgment doctrine.
 (pg 2,12,14,15,19)

· U.S. Constitution.*

· Violated due process rights. (pg 3,10)

· Violated the requirement to accept factual allegations as true that are stated in the complaint at that stage of the proceedings. 
Dennis v. Sparks 449 U.S. 24 (1980)(“a section 1983 complaint should not be dismissed unless it appears that the Appellant can prove no set of facts which would entitle him to relief ... For the purposes of testing sufficiency of the complaint, the allegations of the complaint must be accepted as true.”

· Making reference in the sua sponte dismissal order to matters that were not part of the record, which requires discovery and the right of Appellant to file objections. The dismissal is then based on Rule 54 instead of 12 when material outside of the pleading is used. And Rule 54 requires a hearing, discovery, affidavits, and other opposition material. 
· Violated the right to discovery, which is required by Federal Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 12; Rule 26 (discovery),
  Rule 36 (admissions),
 Rule 37 (discovery),
 Rule 56 (notice, discovery, affidavit s),
 and Rule 57  (discovery and trial).

· Violated right to jury trial on factual matters, including determination of conspiracy to obstruct justice and violate civil rights. FRCivP 38
 and 57 (jury trial under Rule 57).
Appellant’s Complaint demanded a jury trial. (CT 1:pg 1) 

· Violated due process by making numerous false and also conclusionary statements in dismissal order. The dismissal order falsely stated that every issue raised in Appellant’s Complaint had been previously adjudicated and found without merit. (CT:3: 13-15). Never had any of the issues raised in Appellant’s complaints been adjudicated. Each was dismissed in the early pleading stage, often sua sponte immediately after their filing, and in every case before discovery and other rights were exercised:

The Court notes that Appellant has brought numerous actions in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California and other Federal Courts containing similar allegations. All the actions were deemed to be without merit and all actions were summarily dismissed. After finding that Appellant “has overwhelmingly demonstrated that he is a vexatious litigant,” the United States District Court for the Northern District of California enjoined him “from filing any civil actions in federal court without leave of court. … all the actions were deemed to be without merit.”

· Violated due process by reversing the legal definition of frivolous filing. The dismissal order reversed the legal definition of “frivolous.” It stated that Appellant’s Complaint (which attempted to report criminal activities and exercise federally defenses), was a frivolous filing. “[P]laintiff has overwhelmingly demonstrated that he is a vexatious litigant, ... Section  1915 ... authorizes courts to dismiss a frivolous or malicious action ...” (CT 2: pgs 3,4)

· A frivolous filing is one totally devoid of any legal point, a statement that could never be made in any of Appellant’s filings. “An appeal [or complaint] is not frivolous if any of the legal points [are] arguable on their merits.” Anders v. California (1967) 386 U.S. 738. Reporting criminal activities involved in a series of fatal airline crashes, that appellant alleges caused the conditions to exist that enabled hijackers to seize four airliners on 9/11, aren’t exactly frivolous. Appellant was highly qualified and authorized by law to make such determinations.
· Violated due process by reversing the legal definition of vexatious litigant. The dismissal order stated of Appellant’s Complaint: (“After finding that plaintiff has overwhelmingly demonstrated that he is a vexatious litigant,” the United States District  Court “has overwhelmingly demonstrated that he is a vexatious litigant,” the United States District Court for the Northern District of California enjoined him “from filing any civil actions in federal court without [off-the-record] leave of the court.” [Order pgs 3,4]

· Vexatious litigant, a former federal agent, seeking to comply with the criminal requirement to report criminal and even subversive activities that enabled a series of airline crashes to occur, and for exercising defenses guaranteed by the laws and Constitution of the United States for seeking to halt the great personal and financial harm arising form record-setting violations of state and federal laws that were part of a parallel scheme to halt his exposure activities. Corrupt conditions that would create the conditions enabling hijackers to seize four airliners on 9/11.
· Violated due process by mislabeling facts in Appellant’s Complaint as lacking “meritorious issue.” (CT 2:4)  To lack merit, the statements, which must be accepted as true at the pleading stage, complied with the federal crime reporting statute; stated facts showing major violations under the Civil Rights Act, Bivens, FTCA, and Declaratory Judgment Act.  

· Committed obstruction of justice offence by blocking the reporting of criminal activities that the judge must receive as part of the judge’s administrative duties. Title 18 U.S.C. § 4. Lower court sought to support refusal to receive evidence of criminal activities by the following false statements: (a) Appellant has no standing to report criminal activities  (Order pg. 2); that Appellant was seeking to force the Justice Department to prosecute (Order pg. 2 & 3); 

· Delay of 13 months in Filing Complaint Suggested  the Start of Due Process Violations and Cover-up of criminal activities. The complaint was blocked from being filed for 13 months, and was not filed until after Appellant sent letters to each of the U.S. Supreme Court justices complaining of the latest due process violations. Than, a five-page dismissal order, which surely required weeks to prepare, was filed simultaneously with the delayed filing of the complaint.
Record-Setting Substantive Due Process Violations

· Violated the due process right for relief under the Civil Rights Act. (42 U.S.C. § 1983-1986), for repeated violations of federally protected rights occurring under color of state law. These were initially violated by a CIA law firm in a sham lawsuit, that violated over three dozen state and federal statutes, and constitutional protections, and Supreme Court decisions. The defendants (and other causes of actions) were to be listed in a separate filing as stated on pages 18 and 21 of Appellant’s Complaint.


· Par # 49: Plaintiff will request that other causes of actions and other defendants be added to this federal filing. Their wrongful conduct has been intimately intertwined with the events stated here, including the deadly event s of September 11, 2001.


· Par # 57. As to Court Eight, the right to amend this court filing to include causes of actions and defendants that are intertwined with the criminal activities and the related harm stated in the filing.

· Violated the due process right for relief under Bivens,
 for repeated violations of federally protected rights occurring under color of federal law. Defendants were to be named in separate filing as stated in pages 18 and 21 of Appellant’s complaint. These violations
 occurred under color of federal law in federal courts. The defendants (and other causes of actions) were to be listed in a separate filing as stated on pages 18 and 21 of Appellant’s Complaint.

· Violated the due process right for relief under RICO (Title 42 U.S.C. §§ 1961-1965), for multiple predicate acts,
 in a conspiracy, inflicting great harm upon Appellant, and adversely affecting interstate and international commerce—including the events of September 11, 2001. The defendants (and other causes of actions) were to be listed in a separate filing as stated on pages 18 and 21 of Appellant’s Complaint.

· Violated due process defenses under the Declaratory Judgment Act (28 U.S.C. § 2201,
 2202, FRCivP 57), to declare Appellant’s legal rights and obligations stated in five judgments, which were violated as part of the initial scheme by a CIA-front law firm
 to seize the assets that funded Appellant’s exposure activities. This cause of action was not  addressed in the dismissal order.

· Violated due process defenses under the Supreme Court’s void judgment doctrine,
 to address unlawful, unconstitutional, and void orders that seized Appellant’s assets without notice, without a hearing, and without cause; and to reinstate Appellant’s due process and equal protection rights to federal court access. This cause of action was not addressed in the dismissal order.

· Violated due process relief under the Federal Tort Claims Act  (42 U.S.C. §§ 2671-2274), arising from the tortuous acts
 of federal employees
 as they retaliated against Appellant as part of the multiple actions taken to halt his exposure activities. The dismissal order relating to the FTCA claim deceptively claimed the U.S. government was totally immune on the basis of sovereign immunity.

· The sua sponte dismissal order related to the FTCA action stated:  (Order pg 1)

“Appellant’s claim against the United States Government must be dismissed because the doctrine of sovereign immunity bars from federal court all suits grounded in tort against the United States absent its express consent.”


· Appellant did state a claim under FTCA. The lower court’s decision also stated that Appellant had not exhausted his administrative remedies under the FTCA claim by filing an administrative claim. (CT 1: pg 2) 


· Appellant did file administrative claims, only to be blocked by federal judges from court access.  The sua sponte dismissal prevented Appellant from contradicting that and other false statements. 

FALSE STATEMENTS MADE IN DISMISSAL ORDER

Deceptions Relating to attempts to Block Reports of Criminal Activities.

· Irregularities started with the 13 months delayed filing of Appellant’s complaint. It was not filed until after Appellant sent letters to each of the Supreme Court justices complaining about the latest obstruction of justice tactics by Judge Mukasey.

· False statements relating to reporting criminal activities:


· “Plaintiff’s claim pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 4 must be dismissed because he does not have standing to maintain such an action.” (pg 2)


· It is a mandatory requirement of anyone who knows of a federal crime that he or she must report it to a federal judge or other federal officer, under the federal crime reporting statute.
 It is not an action against the government to make such report. Federal judges repeatedly sentence men and women to prison for failure to report federal crimes.


· “A private citizen lacks a judicially cognizable interest in the prosecution or nonprosecution of another.”


· “Plaintiff lacks right to interfere with prosecutor’s determination to dismiss criminal action.”


· “Criminal prosecutions are within the province of the United States Attorney who has complete discretion over the decision to continue or cease prosecution.”


The truth; Plaintiff’s complaint stated: “This federal filing under the federal crime reporting statute, 18 U.S.C. § 4 seeks to provide information and evidence related to, among other matters of grave national interest, the federal offenses that aided and abetted and insured the successful hijacking of four airliners by 19 terrorist hijackers on September 11, 2001.”
· Misstated statements of criminal and subversive activities as delusional. (Order pg. 5); without merit (Order pg. 4); frivolous (Order Pg. 4)


· Plaintiff was one of the federal government’s most experienced and qualified aviation safety experts.


· The federal government gave him the assignment to correct the conditions responsible for the worst series of airline crashes in the nation’s history.


· He has written books on aviation safety, and appeared as guest and expert on over 3,000 radio and television shows since 1978.


· He had years as an international airline captain and was a Navy Patrol Plane Commander and instructor during World War II.


· Federal judges and an assistant U.S. attorney admitted the gravity of Appellant’s allegations.


· U.S. district judge Schnacke.


· One of judges on 9th Circuit court of appeals during oral argument.


· Assistant U. S. Attorney George Stoll.


· U.S. district judge Schwartz.


· Members of Congress in writing.

· “All but one of Stich’s claims are barred by sovereign immunity.” (U.S. attorney brief pg 2)


None of the claims are barred by sovereign immunity, including:

· Attempt to report criminal activities in government offices as provided by the federal crime reporting statute, Title 18 U.S.C. § 4.

· Civil Rights Act claim against the unnamed people violating Appellant’s civil and constitutional rights under color of state law in state courts.

· Bivens claim against unnamed people violating Appellant’s civil and constitutional rights under color of federal law in federal courts.

· Declaratory Judgment Act claim to declare Appellant’s legal rights and legal obligations adjudicated and stated in five judgments that are in controversy with a California judgment rendered 20 years later for the same issues that were previously litigated.

· RICO claim against unnamed people whose multiple predicate acts in a conspiracy to harm Appellant, which harmed interstate commerce.

· Void judgment doctrine to declare as void the unlawful and unconstitutional orders voiding for Appellant the due process and equal protection rights guaranteed to all by the laws and Constitution of the United States.

· Void judgment doctrine to declare as void the unlawful and unconstitutional orders seizing and liquidating Appellant’s assets. 

Referring to FTCA, that the federal government’s doctrine of sovereign immunity bars suits targeted in torts, and that the government is immune from torts committed by its employees. (Order pg. 2) (Authority arises under the FTCA, and the specific federal employees will be named in separate filing as stated on pages 18 and 21 of complaint.)

FALSE STATEMENTS AND ERRORS IN U.S.ATTORNEY’S BRIEF

· “Dismissal was proper because Stich had been enjoined from filing further lawsuits without prior leave of court.”  [U.S. attorney brief pg 15]

· Orders Requiring off-the-record approval to exercise rights guaranteed by the laws and Constitution of the United States are void orders. Such orders violate the due process and equal protection of the law and constitution, and acted, and were intended, to block Appellant from reporting criminal activities against the United States; and deny to Appellant the federal defenses against the violations of federally protected rights that were parallel efforts to block h is exposure of these federal crimes.

· Crime reporting statute does not provide for off-the-record requests to report criminal activities in government offices.  

· Effect, and intent, of the orders was to block the reporting of criminal activities and to block Appellant from exercising federal defenses, constituting the criminal offense of obstruction of justice.

· The unlawful and unconstitutional orders were combined with criminal obstruction of justice, and criminal retaliation against Appellant for attempting to report federal crimes and for attempting to exercise civil rights.
 These are federal crimes.  (Criminal acts as they relate to efforts to block exercise of civil and constitutional rights: 18 U.S.C. § 241 and 42 U.S.C. § 1985; and criminal acts as they relate to blocking the reports of criminal activities: 18 U.S.C. §§ 2, 3, 4.) 

· “The district court’s dismissal did not violate any right to discovery or to a jury trial.” (U.S. attorney brief pg. 37]

· A jury trial is required, when requested, in all matters that a jury is allowed to decide, including conspiracy, declaratory judgment under FRCivP 57

· “Has filed over 35 actions in federal courts.” (U.S. attorney brief page 2)

· Every filing stated facts showing major violations of federally protected rights for which federal remedies existed. And most also attempted to report criminal activities that were continuing to inflict great harm upon major national interests. In the aviation area, there was a long series of fatal airline crashes made possible by the corruption Appellant had discovered as part of h is official duties and which he sought to report and expose.

· The  filings could have been reduced to only a few if the obstruct ction of justice had not existed and the repeated block to the exercise of federally protected rights had not been perpetrated. Every filing was permitted by federal law, and every filing was blocked, by placing a frivolous label on them.

· There were several more filings the U.S. attorney didn’t list. In these federal district and appellate judges admitted the seriousness of Appellant’s charges of criminal activities in the government’s aviation safety offices, but refused to receive the information that Appellant was seeking to provide.

· Many  people would be alive today if the criminal activities Appellant sought to report in those lawsuits had not been blocked from being reported. If that number is correct, it would show the persistence in attempting to report criminal activities associated with a long series of fatal airline crashes and other areas adversely affecting national security. 

·  Corruption and even criminal activities in the government’s aviation safety offices.

·  Drug smuggling involving CIA and other government agents.

· Corruption in the bankruptcy courts. 

· Numerous other areas of criminal activities: October Surprise and its cover-up; drug smuggling as part of the Contra operation; CIA involvement in financial crimes, including looting of the savings and loans; FBI  agents working with organized crime, as in the Boston and New York City areas where FBI agents provided the names of government informants to organized crime,  resulting in the murder of these informants; 

· “No Defendants were listed for a cause of action under the Civil Rights Acts” [U.S. attorney brief )

· As stated in Appellant’s complaint on pages 18 and 21, appellant will file a motion to include the defendants who violated Appellant’s civil rights occurring under color of state law in the California courts, including the CIA-front law firm who initiated the massive violations. Appellant has a right to file an amended complaint before any of the defendants were served.
 This was done to reduce the number of listed defendants where Appellant expected the federal judge to continue the practice of blocking the reports of criminal activities and blocking every federal defense, as in the past, and make a sua sponte dismissal.

·  “All but one of Stich’s claims are barred by sovereign immunity.” (U.S. attorney brief pg 2, 4)

None of the claims are barred by sovereign immunity, including:

· Attempt to report criminal activities in government offices as provided by the federal crime reporting statute, Title 18 U.S.C. § 4.

· Civil Rights Act claim against the unnamed people violating Appellant’s civil and constitutional rights under color of state law in state courts.

· Bivens claim against unnamed people violating Appellant’s civil and constitutional rights under color of federal law in federal courts.

· Declaratory Judgment Act claim to declare Appellant’s legal rights and legal obligations adjudicated and stated in five judgments that are in controversy with a California judgment rendered 20 years later for the same issues that were previously litigated.

· RICO claim against unnamed people whose multiple predicate acts in a conspiracy to harm Appellant, which harmed interstate commerce.

· Void judgment doctrine to declare as void the unlawful and unconstitutional orders voiding for Appellant the due process and equal protection rights guaranteed to all by the laws and Constitution of the United States.

· Void judgment doctrine to declare as void the unlawful and unconstitutional orders seizing and liquidating Appellant’s assets.

· “Sovereign Immunity barred all of Stich’s Claims Except That Under FTCA.” [U.S. attorney brief pg. 19) 


The only monetary claim against the government was under Federal Tort Claims Act for the torts perpetrated by government employees.

· Appellant made no claims for compensation against the U.S. government except under FTCA.

· Federal statutes have been enacted that specifically makes the federal government financially liable to a person who suffers harm from state torts perpetrated by government personnel. These state torts included: Title 28 U.S.C. §§ Title 28 U.S.C. § 2675(a)
· The attempt to report criminal activities to a federal judge is not a claim against the U.S. government. It is a mandatory requirement to provide, and to receive. 

·  The Bivens cause of action was against federal employees. Appellant stated the Bivens violations and stated on page 18 and 21 of the complaint that he would be naming the Bivens defendants. 

· The Civil Rights cause of action was similar, in that the violations were stated with the provision that the defendants would be named in separate filings.

· “Bivens does not provide a waiver of the Government’s sovereign immunity.” (U.S. attorney brief pg. 21)

· The Bivens cause of action was not a claim against the U.S. government. These violations were perpetrated under color of federal law in federal courts, and the defendants perpetrating these violations were to be stated in a separate filing as stated on pages 18 and 21 of Appellant’s complaint.

· “FTCA claim should be dismissed because of his failure to exhaust administrative remedies.” [U.S. attorney brief fn pg. 23) (28 USC 2671-2274)


Appellant did file administrative claims with the Justice Department and with the Office of the federal courts, prior to this filing. The sua sponte dismissal prevented Appellant from presenting evidence on this matter. Federal rule of civil procedure Rule 8 does not require that all the details and evidence be included in the Complaint. Federal rules of court requires that the complaint make a short statement of the allegations.

· Appellant also filed prior administrative claims in earlier federal filings that were unlawfully and unconstitutionally dismissed at the early pleading stage. Appellant argues that the denied of due process in the earlier administrative claims continued that cause of action.

· “The district court properly took notice of prior orders entered against Stich in other cases.” [U.S. attorney brief pg. 38]

· By referring to matters outside of the pleadings, Rule   xxx requires that Appellant be given the opportunity to respond, to discovery, to affidavits.

· 18 U.S.C. § 4 did not present a basis for an Investigation of government officials. (U.S. attorney brief, pg 26)

·  “It is also well established that “there is … no constitutional right to an investigation by government officials.” (pg 26)

· Appellant’s attempts to report criminal activities to a federal judge did not seek to force an investigation; it was compliance with the federal crime reporting statute to report a federal crime to a federal judge. What the judge does with it then is out of Appellant’s control.

· “The Complaint fails to state a claim under FTCA. [U.S. attorney brief pg. 29]

· Appellant’s complaint met the pleading requirements of giving a short statement on the torts violated by federal employees.

· District court sua sponte dismissal order stated that Stich has a long history of meritless lawsuits in federal court.” (U.S. attorney brief pg. 4) This holding, relying upon matters not of record, required a hearing and opportunity to dispute the holding.

· Every single federal filing   stated hardcore multiple federal causes of actions [
] and most of them also sought to report criminal activities
  under the mandatory requirements of the federal crime reporting statute.

· Repeated violations of dozens of state and federal laws and constitutional protections, first in the California courts and then in federal courts, generated repeated claims and federal causes of actions for which federal defenses existed. 

· “The remainder of statutes cited by Stich, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1343, 1361, 2201, also do not provide a waiver of sovereign immunity.” [U.S. attorney brief pg. 22)

· None of these statutes sought claims against the United States. 

· 1343 was cited to show the court’s jurisdiction over the civil actions.

· 1361 was for an action to compel a federal officer to perform his duty.

· 2201 was to declare Appellant’s legal rights and legal responsibilities established in five prior judgments that are contradicted by a California judgment rendered 20 years later for the same issues previously adjudicated.

· U.S. Attorney Tactics to Halt Exposure and Reporting Activities


The Appellee brief filed by the U.S. attorney used similar deception to cover up for the massive due process violations and violations of federal defenses against the record numbers of violations of federally protected rights:

· Mislabeled attempts to report crimes against the government and exercise of federal protections, stated in complaints, as frivolous, thereby reversing the legal and common sense definition of frivolous:

· Frivolous to report criminal activities that were involved in a series of fatal airline crashes, and would be involved in the conditions that enabled hijackers to seize four airliners on 9/11.

· Frivolous to exercise federal defenses against the dozens of state and federal statutes and constitutional protections that were inflicting great and irreparable personal and financial harm upon appellant, when the law provides a federal cause of action when only one of the dozens of laws violated occurred.

· Numerous people, including federal judges, admitted the gravity of the early criminal activities that Appellant sought to report, including those in the government’s aviation safety offices.
  

· Having $10 million in assets taken through sham lawsuits that were barred by dozens of state and federal laws, and having assets seized without the constitutional right to a hearing, notice of hearing, and legally recognized cause (and then followed by orders barring filing objections).

· Approved the unlawful and unconstitutional orders that terminated all legal and constitutional rights and defenses—which was one of multiple tactics to block Appellant’s reports of criminal activities.

· Approved the sua sponte dismissal by Judge Mukasey that violated numerous due process rights, in addition to blatant obstruction of justice by blocking reports of criminal activities in government offices—which included federal judges and Justice Department lawyers.

· Mislabeled Appellant’s statements of facts in the complaint as conclusionary allegations.

· Deceptively referred to appellant’s reporting of facts as allegations of conspiracies. 

· Issues had already been litigated argument:

·  Not a single federal cause of action was ever litigated, or decided on its merits. No decision was ever rendered that made any such statement.

· Every filing was dismissed without ever reaching the merits, by:

·   Placing a frivolous label on them—reversing the legal and common sense definition of the term.

· Sua sponte dismissal, without ever getting to the merits of the cause of action.

· Relying upon the unlawful and unconstitutional orders permanently barring Appellant the right to file any papers in the federal district and appellate courts.

· Rule 8 relates to pleadings:

· (Rule 8.1—a short and plain statement of the ground upon which the court’s jurisdiction depends.)

· (Rule 8.2—a short and plain statement of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief.

· (Rule 8(e)(1): Each averment of a pleading shall be simple, concise, and direct. 

· Rule 8(f): All pleadings shall be so construed as to do substantial justice.

· Allegations not denied must be accepted as true. (Rule 8(d). Statements made in a pleading are admitted when not denied in the responsive pleading. 

· The record shows that no violation of federally protected rights could obtain for Appellant a right to due process in the federal courts. As it relates to the violations of federally protected rights arising from a sham lawsuit filed by a CIA-front law firm, there were over three dozen state and federal statutes violated, plus constitutional violations and violations of Supreme Court holdings, for which federal judges placed a frivolous label on appellant’s exercise of federal defenses. Any one-time violation of any one of the dozens of statutes and constitutional provisions that were violated raised major federal causes of action. Yet, federal judges, by reversing the legal definition of frivolous, labeled the exercise of these defenses as frivolous.  

      Fraud or collusion in connection with the rendition of a judgment is regarded as rendering the judgment void. League v. DeYoung US 11 How 184, 13 L Ed 657; Re Milliman's Estate 2 Ariz App 155, 406 P2d 873, 154 ALR 818, 831.

� Title 18 U.S.C. § 4. Misprision of felony. Whoever, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony cognizable by a court of the United States, conceals and does not as soon as possible make known the same to some judge or other person in civil or military authority under the United States, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than three years, or both.


� Title 18 U.S.C. § 4. Misprision of felony. Whoever, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony cognizable by a court of the United States, conceals and does not as soon as possible make known the same to some judge or other person in civil or military authority under the United States, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than three years, or both.


� An illegal order is forever void. An order that exceeds the jurisdiction of the court, is void, or voidable, and can be attacked in any proceeding in any court where the validity of the judgment comes into issue. (See Rose v. Himely (1808) 4 Cranch 241, 2 L ed 608; Pennoyer v. Neff (1877) 95 US 714, 24 L ed 565; Thompson v. Whitman (1873) 18 Wall 457, 21 l ED 897; Windsor v. McVeigh (1876) 93 US 274, 23 L ed 914; McDonald v. Mabee (1917) 243 US 90, 37 Sct 343, 61 L ed 608. A judgment may not be rendered in violation of constitutional protections. The validity of a judgment may be affected by a failure to give the constitutionally required due process notice. Earle v. McVeigh, 91 US 503, 23 L Ed 398.


� FRCivP 26. General Provisions Governing Discovery; Duty of Disclosure. (Discovery through request for admissions would greatly simplify the adjudication of the issues; help to show the extent of the conspiracy)


� Request  for admissions.


� Sanctions for failure to cooperate in discovery.


	� Rule 56. Summary Judgment. (c) Motion and Proceedings Thereon. The motion shall be served at least 10 days before the time fixed for the hearing. The adverse party prior to the day of hearing may serve opposing affidavits. The judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. A summary judgment, interlocutory in character, may be rendered on the issue of liability alone although there is a genuine issue as to the amount of damages.


� Rule 57 Declaratory Judgments. �PRIVATE ��The procedure for obtaining a declaratory judgment pursuant to Title 28 U.S.C. § 2201, shall be in accordance with these rules, and the right to trial by jury may be demanded under the circumstances and in the manner provided in Rules 38 and 39. The existence of another adequate remedy does not preclude a judgment for declaratory relief in cases where it is appropriate. The court may order a speedy hearing of an action for a declaratory judgment and may advance it on the calendar.


� FRCivP 38. Jury Trial of Right. (a) Right Preserved. The right of trial by jury as declared by the Seventh Amendment to the Constitution or as given by a statute of the United States shall be preserved to the parties inviolate.


� The right to a jury trial is further stated in FRCivP Rule 57 as it relates to Appellant’s claim under the Declaratory Judgment Act


� Bivens v. Six Unknown Named Agents of Federal Bureau of Narcotics, 403 U.S. 388 (1971).


� Bivens violations included:  the acts by lawyers, law firms, Chapter 11 trustees and their lawyers and employees who engaged in civil and constitutional violations during chapter 11 proceedings; lawyers and law firms who engaged in other federal violations; Federal judges and Justice Department lawyers to engaged in various civil and constitutional violations against Appellant, including felony retaliation for attempting to report criminal activities; felony retaliation for exercising civil and constitutional rights;


� Predicate acts under  RICO, in multiple conspiracies, included (a) the sham lawsuit filed by a CIA-front law firm and their lawyers; (b) lawyers who acted in concert with them; (c) federal judges, trustees, lawyers, who conspired  to strip  appellant of his assets as part of the multiple schemes to block his reporting of criminal activities; (d ) 


� Title 28 U.S.C. § 2201. Creation of remedy. In a case of actual controversy within its juris�diction, any court of the United States, upon the filing of an appropriate pleading, may declare the rights and other legal relations of any interested party seeking such declaration, whether or not further relief is or could be sought. Any such declaration shall have the force and effect of a final judgment or decree and shall be reviewable as such.


 Title 28 U.S.C. § 2202. Further relief. Further necessary or proper relief based on a declara�to�ry judgment or decree may be granted, after reasonable notice and hearing, against any adverse party whose rights have been determined by such judgment.


�  Friedman, Sloan, and Ross, San Francisco, and their participating lawyers.


� An order that exceeds the jurisdiction of the court, is void, or voidable, and can be attacked in any proceeding in any court where the validity of the judgment comes into issue. (Rose v. Himely (1808) 4 Cranch 241, 2 L ed 608; Pennoyer v. Neff (1877) 95 US 714, 24; A judgment may not be rendered in violation of constitutional protections. The validity of a judgment may be affected by a failure to give the constitutionally required due process notice. Earle v. McVeigh, 91 US 503.	


� Tortious acts of federal employees included engaging in:


fraudulent conspiracy to seize Appellant’s assets; 


to block his reporting of criminal activities, 


to violate state and federal laws and constitutional protections; 


fraudulent and intentional interference with prospective economic advantage; 


negligent interference with prospective economic advantage; 


intentional infliction of emotional distress; 


negligent infliction of emotional distress; 


destruction of quality of life; 


deliberate destruction of credit-worthiness; 


refusal to perform a fiduciary duty; intentional violation and deprivation of Appellant’s civil and constitutional rights; 


fraud; 


conspiracies; 


invasion of privacy through sham lawsuit by CIA-front law firm; 


fraudulent and felonious acts against Plaintiff; 


fraudulent taking of liberties and freedoms; 


liability for personal and financial injuries arising from conspiracy, fraud, violations of large numbers of state and federal laws and constitutional protections; false imprisonment in state court; vicarious liability by California judges; fraud including misrepresentation, harassment; false imprisonment; malicious prosecution and abuse of process; defamation and invasion of privacy;


� Federal employees involved in FTCA torts were federal judges, Justice Department lawyers; federal trustees and employees of federal trustees.


� Title 18 U.S.C. § 4. Misprision of felony. Whoever, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony cognizable by a court of the United States, conceals and does not as soon as possible make known the same to some judge or other person in civil or military authority under the United States, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than three years, or both.


� Retaliation for attempting to exercise civil and constitutional rights are felonies under 42 USC § 1985 and 28 USC 241.


� Stich v. United States, et al., 554 F.2d 1070 (9th Cir.) (tab�le), cert. denied, 434 U.S. 920 (1977)(addressed hard-core air safety misconduct, violations of federal air safety laws, threats against government inspectors not to report safety violations and misconduct); Stich v. National Transportation Safety Board, 685 F.2d 446 (9th Cir.)(table), cert. denied, 459 U.S. 861 (1982))(addressed repeated criminal falsification of official airline accident reports, omitting highly sensitive air safety misconduct, making possible repeated crashes from the same sequestered problems); Amicus curiae brief filed on July 17, 1975, in the Paris DC-10 multi-district litigation, Flanagan v. McDonnell Douglas Corporation and United States of America, Civil Action 74-808-PH, MDL 172, Central District California.)(addressing the long standing FAA misconduct, of which the cover-up of the DC-10 cargo door problem was one of repeated instances of tragedy related misconduct); U.S. v. Department of Justice, District of Columbia, Nos. 86-2523, 87-2214, and other actions filed by Stich seeking to expose and correct the powerful and covert air disaster misconduct.


� Right to file an amended complaint before any of the defendants are served arises under r…………


� Torts perpetrated by federal employees included …………………….


� Initial federal filings addressing the violations of federally protected rights stated hardcore violations of federally protected rights for which the federal causes of actions were the Civil Rights Act and the Declaratory Judgment Act.


� Criminal activities that Appellant sought to report included, initially, deep-seated corruption and criminal acts in the government’s aviation safety offices that enabled a number of very brutal and fatal airline crashes to occur; in other areas, the criminal activities included drug smuggling by agents of the CIA and other government offices; …


� Stich v. United States, et al., 554 F.2d 1070 (9th Cir.) (tab�le), cert. denied, 434 U.S. 920 (1977)(addressed hard-core air safety misconduct, violations of federal air safety laws, threats against government inspectors not to report safety violations and misconduct); Stich v. National Transportation Safety Board, 685 F.2d 446 (9th Cir.)(table), cert. denied, 459 U.S. 861 (1982))(addressed repeated criminal falsification of official airline accident reports, omitting highly sensitive air safety misconduct, making possible repeated crashes from the same sequestered problems); Amicus curiae brief filed on July 17, 1975, in the Paris DC-10 multi-district litigation, Flanagan v. McDonnell Douglas Corporation and United States of America, Civil Action 74-808-PH, MDL 172, Central District California.)(addressing the long standing FAA misconduct, of which the cover-up of the DC-10 cargo door problem was one of repeated instances of tragedy related misconduct); U.S. v. Department of Justice, District of Columbia, Nos. 86-2523, 87-2214, and other actions filed by Stich seeking to expose and correct the powerful and covert air disaster misconduct.


� The requirement for Appellant to obtain off-the-record approval for federal court access violated due process and equal protection rights. Further, the mislabeling of major federal causes of actions as frivolous insured that Appellant would never get access to the courts. (Even when he did get access, every procedural and substantive due process was violated, while continuing to block the reporting of criminal activities.)
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